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PRESS INFORMATION


“Silent Night, Holy Night!” 

A song from Salzburg captivates the world
In the night of 24 December 1818, the famous Christmas song “Silent Night, Holy Night!” was performed for the very first time, at a small chapel in Oberndorf just outside Salzburg. Today, more than 200 years later, this song is as much a part of Christmas as cookies and gifts under the tree. No sooner have the first notes sounded out, than the spirit of Christmas fills the hearts of everyone. As we trace the story of how this Christmas classic came to be, we quickly encounter the city of Salzburg itself, where Joseph Mohr, the man who penned the words of the song, was born.
In the first half of the 19th century a song was born in Salzburg, one that would touch the souls of people around the world and become immortal: the Christmas carol “Silent Night, Holy Night!”, based on a poem written by the priest Joseph Mohr and set to music by teacher Franz Xaver Gruber. Since then, this simple, reflective song from Salzburg (the text written in 1816, the melody in 1818) has been sung in more than 300 languages, including Javanese, Samoan and Zulu.
Joseph Mohr: from illegitimate child to kind-hearted priest 

Josephus Franciscus Mohr was born on 11 December 1792, the illegitimate son of embroiderer Anna Schoiber and military deserter Joseph Mohr, in the city of Salzburg. In accordance with the law of that time, the child was given the name of his father. Church records indicate that he was christened in Salzburg Cathedral – at the same baptismal font that was also used to christian Wolfgang Amadé Mozart -, while the house where he was born is no longer known with absolute certainty. However, a written census conducted in 1794 indicates that he and his mother lived in that year at the house which stands at No. 31 Steingasse.

In Johann Nepomuk Hiernle, vicar at Salzburg Cathedral, the boy found someone who would support his education. After attending the Gymnasium in Salzburg and studying philosophy at the Benedictine abbey in Kremsmünster, in 1811 Mohr entered religious seminary in Salzburg, was ordained in 1815, and served from 1815 to 1817 as a curate in Mariapfarr, in the southern Lungau region of Salzburg, presumably at his own request, since this was the parish his father came from and also where his grandfather still lived. However, in 1817 illness necessitated his transfer to the Flachgau district and the small town of Oberndorf, where the milder climate was more conducive to improving his health. In that same year, we had his first encounter with Franz Xaver Gruber, who had been working as a teacher in nearby Arnsdorf since 1807 and also held the position of organist at St. Nicholas’ Church in Oberndorf. Mohr’s future life would take him to numerous other parishes in Salzburger Land until, in February 1837, he was ultimately given charge of the parish in Wagrain, located in the Pongau district of Salzburg. He was a man of great charity, loved and venerated by the locals, and a great friend to the poor and sick. Mohr passed away in Wagrain on 4 December 1848 and was buried there at the village cemetery.

Franz Xaver Gruber: Teacher and Musical Genius
Franz Xaver Gruber also came from humble beginnings, born on 25 November 1787 in Steinpointsölde/Unterweizberg zu Hochburg in Upper Austria (about 44 km north of Salzburg), the fifth of six children of a linen weaver. Even in his younger years his musical talents were evident, nurtured – initially contrary to the wishes of his father – by Georg Hartdobler, parish organist in the neighboring town of Burghausen. Gruber became a teacher, coming to Arnsdorf – in the Flachgau district of Salzburg – in 1807, where he also served as sacristan and organist (later also in nearby Oberndorf). 
In 1817, a friendship developed with Joseph Mohr in Oberndorf. On 24 December 1818, Mohr handed Gruber the text of a Christmas song he had written, asking him to set it to appropriate music – the rest of that story is well known. in 1829, Gruber became a teacher in Berndorf near Salzburg, while in 1835 he moved to Hallein, where he had been offered a position as choirmaster and organist at the town parish church. He remained in that post until his death on 7 June 1863. Gruber left behind a rich musical legacy of more than 70 personal compositions, including Latin and German masses, motets and much more. 

Franz Xaver Gruber’s grave lies in front of his former home in Hallein, which now houses a museum. 
The creation of an immortal song
Many stories are intertwined with the birth of this song, some very romantic and others rather improbable. However, we now know that Mohr had already written the text in 1816 while in Mariapfarr. We are also certain that the old organ of St. Nicholas’ Parish Church in Oberndorf was in disrepair and not playable during Christmastime 1818. As a musical accompaniment to the midnight mass on 24 December, teacher and organist Gruber set Mohr’s text to a simple melody for two solo voices and choir, performed for the first time on Christmas Eve 1818 in the parish church which no longer exists (because it was in such disrepair, it needed to be demolished in 1906). Gruber sang bass and Mohr tenor, with the latter also accompanying the song on his guitar. The song met with the approval of the parishioners – though further details about that first performance were never chronicled. 

The song was gradually forgotten. It was not until 1825 that it was actually heard outside of Oberndorf: Carl Mauracher, an organ builder in that town, took the song with him to Tyrol, his home region, from where the Strassers, who ran a glove-manufacturing business but also had a family vocal ensemble, shared it with audiences during their business travels through Europe. In 1854, the Royal Prussian Court Orchestra wrote to St. Peter’s Abbey in Salzburg, enquiring as to who had actually written the song, since some were under the mistaken belief that it had been composed by Michael Haydn. This request ultimately led to Gruber, the actual composer, writing a brief summary of the background to the song in 1854 (“Authentic reasons for the composition of the Christmas song…”).

Memorial Sites:
Salzburg City – Salzburg Museum houses an original 1855 manuscript of “Silent Night, Holy Night!” from composer Franz Xaver Gruber, given the handwritten title “Church Song for Soprano and Alto in Honor of Christmas Eve ….” and more. Baptismal font in the Cathedral.
Arnsdorf – Franz Xaver Gruber Museum on the upper floor of the schoolhouse, where Gruber used to live: The rooms include original furniture and personal items. Pilgrimage Church “Maria in Mösl”. Gruber served as organist here in the village church.

Oberndorf – Silent Night Memorial Chapel, built on the site of the original St. Nicholas’ Church, where the song was first performed in 1818. At the Mesner House (Mohr’s former home), visitors will find a memorial plaque in his honor. The new Silent Night Museum opened on 19 November 2016. The song and its history are presented on two floors of the Old Parsonage next to the Memorial Chapel. Silent Night Post office during Christmas time.
Hallein – The Silent Night Museum is located in Gruber’s former home, featuring personal memorabilia as well as Mohr’s guitar: His grave is located in front of the house, next to the parish church. 

Hintersee – A Joseph Mohr Memorial Chapel was built here in 2016, commemorating Mohr’s life and work in the area.

Wagrain in Pongau – Joseph Mohr served as parish vicar here from 1837 until his death in 1848; His grave is located in the town cemetery.   
Mariapfarr in Lungau – Mohr’s father came from Mariapfarr. The house where he was born still stands there. Joseph Mohr wrote the text of “Silent Night” here in 1816. During the bicentennial year in 2016, the pilgrimage church also underwent renovations. Silent Night-Museum, Silent Night-Fountain.
Christmas packages bookable at www.salzburg.info/pauschalen 

Further details: 

Tourismus Salzburg, Auerspergstrasse 6, 5020 Salzburg, Austria

Tel.: +43/662/889 87 - 0, #visitsalzburg, www.salzburg.info
presse@salzburg.info
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